
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         December 6, 2021 
 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  
RUSSELL COUNTY 

 
BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 

 
AGENDA – December 6, 2021 

 
BOS Board Room               Regular Meeting               3:00 PM 

 
Russell County Governmental Center 

Lebanon, Virginia 24266 
 

 
 

 
 
CALL TO ORDER & ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) – Legal Matters – Opioid and Northrop Grumman  
(SCHEDULED ONE HOUR BEFORE REGULAR BOS MEETING - - REGULAR BOS MEETING BEGINS AT 4 P.M.) 
 
INVOCATION   
  
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 

1. CPPDC Debbie Milton - Belfast Waterline Extension Phase III – DHCD Grant 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Minutes. Consider approval of the minutes of the  
following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors….……………A-1 
 

a. Unapproved minutes of November 1, 2021        
  

2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  
for payment……………………………………………………………………………...A-2 
 
 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         December 6, 2021 
 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
3. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration. 

 
Appalachian Juvenile Commission 
 
Vicki Porter   Four-Year Term         December 2, 2021 
 
Cumberland Mountain Community Service Board (CSB) 
 
James Mounts  Three-Year Term  December 31, 2021 
David Eaton   Three-Year Term  December 31, 2021 
 
Highway & Safety Commission 
 
Linda Cross   Two-Year Term  December 31, 2021 
 
People Inc. Development Financial Board 
 
Alicia McGlothlin  Three-Year Term  December 31, 2021 
 
Planning Commission  

 
           Vacant                                Four-Year Term                December 6, 2021 
 
           RC Public Service Authority 
 
           Vacant                                Four-Year Term                December 6, 2021 
 
CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS………………………………………..B-1 
 

1. VRA Courthouse Financing Resolution 
 

2. Opioid Litigation Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) & Resolution 
  

3. Project Jonah Interjurisdictional Agreement (Public Notice) 
 

4. Noise Ordinance   
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
REPORTS 
 

1. 2022 VACO Preliminary Legislative Program….…………………………………...C-1 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         December 6, 2021 
 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
 

2. CPPDC Roadmap to Economic Resiliency………………………………………….C-2 
 

3. Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC) – Three Rivers Destination                                   
Center Grant - $209,590………………………………………………………………...C-3 

 
4. RC Abstract of Votes……………………………………………………………………C-4 

 
REQUESTS 

 
5. RC Litter Officer – RC Building Inspector Office…………………………………..C-5 

 
6. Litter Prevention and Recycling Program Grant…………………………………..C-6 

 
7. RC PSA Fire Hydrant Purchase Request……………………………………………C-7 

 
8. VDOT Notice of Intent to Discontinue of Rte. 743 (Rollercoaster Rd.)………...C-8 

 
9. Animal Control Administrative Assistant…………………………………………...C-9 

 
10. RC Employees Christmas Payroll…………………………………………………….C-10 

 
11. RC BOS Annual Employee Turkey…………………………………………………...C-11 

 
12. Curtis Salyers Property Easement – RC Planning Commission Review……...C-12 

 
BOARD DISCUSSIONS & REMINDERS   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
  

• Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………D 
• RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….E 
• RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... F 
• Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..G 
• RC Tourism……………………………………………………………………………….H 
• RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..I 
• RC Conference Center….………………………………………………………………J 
• RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….K 
• RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...L 
• RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….M 
• RC Building Inspector…………………………………………………………………..N 
• RC Disposal………………………………………………………………………………O 
• RC Litter…………………………………………………………………………………...P   



CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by the 
Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss Legal Matters pursuant to 
Section 2.2-3711(A)(7)(8) – Legal Discussions concerning Opioid and Northrop Grumman 
Legal Matters. 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 
Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 
public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 
Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 
identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 
discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 
substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed, or considered during the 
closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 
convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace - 

Lou Ann Wallace - 

Carl Rhea - 

Steve Breeding - 

David Eaton - 

Rebecca Dye - 

Oris Christian - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by , second by and duly approved by 
the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:     
Nay:     



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
   Board of Supervisors                      Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                             Presenters - Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

         Meeting: 12/6/21     4:00 PM 
 

 
Public Hearing  
 

1. CPPDC Debbie Milton - Belfast Waterline Extension Phase III – DHCD Grant 
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Board Discretion.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





































 
     Board of Supervisors                       Action Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

         Meeting: 12/6/21       4:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

a. Unapproved minutes of November 1, 2021          
  

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board discretion 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• Board Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



November 01, 2021 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, November 
01, 2021 at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Oris Christian 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
Vicki Porter, Deputy Clerk 
 
Absent: 
None 
 

Invocation by Caleb Johnson followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as amended to include Executive (closed) Session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Carl Rhea and Rebecca Dye  
Nay:  None 
 

PUBLIC HEARING HELD ON THE ELK GARDEN/TILLER TRAILER PARK WATERLINE EXTENSION PROJECT 
 

Pursuant to being advertised in a local newspaper for (2) two consecutive weeks, a public hearing was 
held on the Elk Garden/ Tiller Trailer Park Waterline Extension Project. 
 
The Chair opened the public hearing to comments. 
 
Jim Baldwin, CPPD addressed the Board concerning this project. 
 
Hearing no other comments, the public hearing was closed by the Chair. 
 



RESOLUTION APPROVED FOR THE ELK GARDEN/TILLER TRAILER PARK WATERLINE EXTENSION 
PROJECT 

  
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a Resolution for the Elk Garden/Tiller Trailer Park Waterline Extension Project. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
New Business 
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the October 12, 2021 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $1,033,958.10 including withholdings and reoccurring. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Committee Appointments 
 
No appointment was made for the Russell County Planning Commission. 
 

ROGER SWORD APPOINTED TO THE RUSSELL COUNTY IDA 
 
David Eaton nominated Burke Artrip 
Carl Rhea nominated Roger Sword 
 
Roger Sword – four (4) votes:  Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye, Oris Christian and Tim Lovelace 
Burke Artrip – three (3) votes:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, and Steve Breeding 
 
Roger Sword was appointed to the Russell County Industrial Development Authority  to fill the 
unexpired term of Ernie McFadden, said term ending October 01, 2022. 
 

LORI ADDISON AND ALICE MEADE REAPPOINTED TO CPMT 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
reappoint Lori Addison and Alice Meade to the Community Policy Management Team for three (3) year 
terms, said terms ending November 01, 2024. 



 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

LINDA CROSS, CHARLENE JOHNSON, TAMMY PERRY, JOHN PERRY, NANCY OSBORNE AND PEGGY 
KEGLEY REAPPOINTED TO THE OAK GROVE COMMUNITY CENTER COMMITTEE 

 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second by David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
reappoint Linda Cross, Charlene Johnson, Tammy Perry, John Perry, Nancy Osborne and Peggy Kegley for 
two (2) year terms, said terms ending November 01, 2023. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
Citizens Comment  
 
The Chairperson opened citizens comment period. 
 
Kelly McBride Delph, RCPL presented a quarterly report to the board. 
B. J. Keene spoke in favor of a noise ordinance for the county. 
Amanda Thomas, Star Ministries commented that they needed heat for the building  
 
The Chairperson closed citizens comment period. 
 

EXECUTIVE (CLOSED) SESSION 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter Executive (closed) Session pursuant to 2.2-3711(A), (3), and (8). 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Steve Breeding, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 



Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (I) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
 
Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed, or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (I) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place? Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 
discussed, or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 
closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye – AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Oris Christian – AYE 
 

 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 
Katie Patton, County Attorney, addressed the Board concerning the possibility of a public hearing 
concerning the noise ordinance.  
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 
Cuba Porter, Chair of The Russell County Public Service Authority addressed the Board about the Nash 
Ford/Clinch Mountain Road Water Line Extension Loan. 
 

APPROVAL OF THE NASH FORD/CLINCH MOUNTAIN ROAD WATER LINE EXTENSION PROJECT LOAN 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the loan for the Russell County Public Service Authority Nash Ford/Clinch Mountain Road Water 
Line Extension Project in the amount of $476,685. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

 
 
 



 
AUTHORIZATION OF THE VRA COURTHOUSE RENOVATION AND EXPANSION PROJECT VIRGINA HELPS 

LEASE REVENUE FINANCING 
 
Motion made by David Eaton, second Steve Breeding and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the Virginia Resource Authority Courthouse Renovation and Expansion Project Virginia HELPS 
Lease Revenue Financing. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THANKSGIVING DAY AND CHRISTMAS DAY PAY FOR PART TIME EMPLOYEES 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve Thanksgiving Day and Christmas Day pay for part time county employees. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 

AUTHORIZATION OF THE ANNUAL TURKEY CERTIFICATES FOR COUNTY FOOD BANKS 
 
Motion made by Steve Breeding, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the annual turkey certificate donation to the county food banks in the amount of $10,000. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Steve Breeding, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Rebecca Dye and Oris Christian 
Nay:  None 
 
The Chairperson set the time for the December 06, 2021 meeting at 4:00 pm due to the Christmas 
Parade 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second Oris Christian and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, Oris Christian, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
__________________________________                                                 ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                                          Chairperson 



 
                                                      Board of Supervisors                         Action Item A-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 12/6/21      4:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 
Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s December 2021 Monthly Expenditures: 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  
County’s December 2021 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 
Motion to approve County’s December 2021 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

• December 2021 Monthly Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





























 
Board of Supervisors  Action Item 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairperson  
Lebanon, VA 24266 

        Meeting: 12/6/21        4:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

      Board Appointments 
 

1. Committee Appointments for Board Consideration. 
 

Appalachian Juvenile Commission 
 
Vicki Porter   Four-Year Term         December 2, 2021 
 
Cumberland Mountain Community Service Board (CSB) 
 
James Mounts  Three-Year Term  December 31, 2021 
David Eaton   Three-Year Term  December 31, 2021 
 
Highway & Safety Commission 
 
Linda Cross   Two-Year Term  December 31, 2021 
 
People Inc. Development Financial Board 
 
Alicia McGlothlin  Three-Year Term  December 31, 2021 
 
Planning Commission 
 
Vacant   Four-Year Term  December 31, 2025 



















                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
    Board of Supervisors   Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Attorney 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

          Meeting: 12/6/21         4:00 PM 
 

 
County Attorney Reports 
 

1. VRA Courthouse Financing Resolution 
 

2. Opioid Litigation Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) & Resolution 
  

3. Project Jonah Interjurisdictional Agreement (Public Notice) 
 

4. Noise Ordinance   
 
 

Staff Recommendation: 
 

Board Discretion. 
 

Suggested Motion: 
 

Motion Required.  
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Various 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 1 

RESOLUTION OF BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE COUNTY OF 
RUSSELL, VIRGINIA, APPROVING LEASE PURCHASE FINANCING 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the "Board") of the County of Russell, 

Virginia (the "County"), has determined: (i) that a true and very real need exists to 
finance the construction, extension, improvement, equipping, and furnishing of equipping 
and improving the Russell County Courthouse and related costs of issuance (the 
"Project"), as further described in the Financing Lease (as hereinafter defined); (ii) that 
the Project is essential to the governmental functions of the County; and (iii) that it 
reasonably expects the Project to continue to be essential to the governmental functions 
of the County for a period not less than the term of the Financing Lease;  

 
WHEREAS, the Board desires to enter into a sale/leaseback financing for the 

acquisition of the Real Estate and Improvements (each as hereinafter defined) with the 
First Community Bank Inc. (the "Purchaser") and the Virginia Resources Authority 
("VRA") utilizing proceeds of a lease revenue bond (as more particularly described in the 
hereinafter defined documents, the "VRA Bond") to be issued by VRA as part of the 
VirginiaHELPS Program (the "Program") established in accordance with a proposal of 
the Purchaser dated November 17, 2021 (the "Proposal"); 

 
WHEREAS, there have been presented to this meeting drafts of the following 

documents (the "Documents"), proposed to be executed in substantially similar form in 
connection with the issuance of the VRA Bond and the sale/leaseback financing: 

 
(a) Bond Purchase and Lease Acquisition Agreement ("Bond Purchase 

Agreement") among VRA, the Purchaser, and the County;  
 

(b) Financing Lease (the "Financing Lease") among VRA (as lessor) and 
the County (as lessee); and 

 
(c) Prime Lease (the "Prime Lease") among VRA and the County. 

 
WHEREAS, as described in the Documents, VRA will deliver the VRA Bond to 

the Purchaser in exchange for the principal amount of the VRA Bond under the terms and 
conditions of the Bond Purchase Agreement; 

 
WHEREAS, the County will enter into the Prime Lease with VRA whereby the 

County will lease certain real estate owned by the County, as determined by the County 
Administrator and that VRA may approve, all to be set forth in the Prime Lease (the 
"Real Estate") and the associated improvements and property located thereon (the 
"Improvements") to VRA; 

 
WHEREAS, the County will enter into the Financing Lease with VRA pursuant 

to which VRA will lease the Real Estate and Improvements back to the County and the 
County will make rental payments corresponding in amount and timing to the debt 
service on the VRA Bond issued to finance the Project.  



 2 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT: 
 
1.  The Board hereby accepts the Proposal of the Purchaser for the financing of 

the Project on the terms set forth therein, including without limitation, a maximum annual 
interest rate of 2.0% during the initial term and an aggregate amount of principal 
components due under the Financing Lease of no more than $16,250,000 for a maximum 
term of no more than 30 years. 

  
If the Board fails to make payments under the terms of the Financing Lease for 

any reason, the Board acknowledges that the Financing Lease will allow VRA and its 
assignees to exercise certain remedies, including without limitation, the liquidation and 
sale of the Real Estate and Improvements. 

 
In addition, the Board acknowledges that VRA is treating the Financing Lease as 

a "local obligation" within the meaning of Section 62.1-199 of the Code of Virginia of 
1950, as amended, including amendments thereto taking effect as of July 1, 2011, which 
in the event of a nonpayment under the Financing Lease authorizes VRA to file an 
affidavit with the Governor that such nonpayment has occurred pursuant to Section 62.1-
216.1 of the Virginia Code.  In acquiring the Financing Lease, VRA is further relying on 
Section 62.1-216.1 of the Virginia Code, providing that if the Governor is satisfied that 
such nonpayment has occurred, the Governor will immediately make an order directing 
the Comptroller to withhold all further payment to the County of all funds, or of any part 
of them, appropriated and payable by the Commonwealth of Virginia to the County for 
any and all purposes, and the Governor will, while the nonpayment continues, direct in 
writing the payment of all sums withheld by the Comptroller, or as much of them as is 
necessary, to VRA, so as to cure, or cure insofar as possible, such nonpayment.  The 
Board agrees to such treatment of the Financing Lease as a "local obligation" under 
Section 62.1-216.1 of the Virginia Code and will not, to the extent permitted by law, 
contest such provision. 

 
2.  It is hereby found and determined that the terms of the Financing Lease and 

the Proposal are in the best interests of the County for the financing of the Project. 
 
3.  The Documents and related financing documents are hereby approved.  The 

Chair, the Vice-Chair and the County Administrator, each of whom is authorized to act, 
are hereby authorized to execute, acknowledge and deliver the Documents and related 
financing documents, including but not limited to an escrow agreement or similar fund 
agreement with an authorized escrow agent, if required, as selected by the Chair, Vice-
Chair or County Administrator, with any changes, insertions and omissions therein as 
may be approved by the individuals executing the Documents, including but not limited 
to the annual interest rate, payment dates, lease term and prepayment provisions and such 
documents, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by the execution and delivery 
thereof. 

 



 3 

4.  The same officers of the Board, and the County Administrator and the County 
Attorney are authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all other agreements, 
financing statements, papers, instruments, opinions, certificates, affidavits and other 
documents and to do or cause to be done any and all other acts and things necessary or 
proper for carrying out the purposes and intents of this resolution and the Documents. 

 
5.  Such officers of the County as may be requested are authorized and directed to 

execute and deliver a non-arbitrage certificate and tax compliance agreement (the "Tax 
Compliance Agreement") in a form to be approved by the officers of the County 
executing such document. 

 
6. The County covenants that it shall neither take nor omit any action the 

taking or omission of which will cause the VRA Bond to be an "arbitrage bond" within 
the meaning of Section 148 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and 
regulations issued pursuant thereto (the "Code"), or otherwise cause interest on the VRA 
Bond to be includable in the gross income of the registered owner thereof under existing 
law.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the County shall comply with any 
provision of the Tax Compliance Agreement that may require the County at any time to 
rebate to the United States any part of the earnings derived from the investment of the 
gross proceeds of the Financing Lease, unless the County receives an opinion of 
nationally recognized bond counsel that such compliance is not required, or is no longer 
required, to prevent interest on the VRA Bond from being included in the gross income 
for federal tax purposes of the registered owners thereto under existing law.  The County 
shall pay any such rebate from legally available funds. 

 
6.  At its discretion, the Board may determine that it is in the best interest of the 

County to authorize the County Treasurer to participate in the State Non-Arbitrage 
Program in connection with the proceeds of the Financing Lease, if directed by the 
Chairman. 

 
7.  The recitals to this resolution are hereby incorporated by reference and are 

declared to be findings of the County in connection with its decision to acquire and 
finance the Project. 

 
8.  All acts of the officers, agents and representatives of the County that are in 

conformity with the purposes and intent of this resolution and in furtherance of the 
leasing of the Real Estate and Improvements by the County to finance the Project and the 
Project is hereby approved, ratified and confirmed. 

 
9.  This resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption. 
 
Date of Adoption:  December __, 2021. 
 
 
 

  



 4 

 
CERTIFICATE OF ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION 

 
The undersigned Clerk of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Russell, 

Virginia, hereby certifies that the Resolution set forth above was adopted during an open 
meeting on December __, 2021, by the Board of Supervisors with the following votes: 

 
Aye:   
   
   
   
   
   
   
 
Nay:   
 
Abstentions:  
 
Signed this __________ day of December 2021 
 
 
By: ___________________________ 
 Clerk, Board of Supervisors 
 
 

 
 
 
 







Member NYSE|FINRA|SIPC

VRA VAHELPS – Russell County
Summary of Proposals Received – Series 2021 Bonds



November 22, 2021 Virginia Resources Authority

Request For Proposal Process

2

 On November 1, 2021, as Financial Advisor to the Virginia Resources Authority (the “Authority”), Davenport & Company LLC 
(“Davenport”), distributed a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) to national, regional, and local financing institutions in order to solicit 
proposals for a direct bank loan evidenced by a Tax-Exempt Bond (the “2021 Bond”). 

 The proceeds of the 2021 Bond will be used through VRA’s VAHELPS program to finance various capital projects to be leased under 
a financing lease to Russell County, VA.

 Davenport requested that interested banks provide lending proposals for approximately $16,000,000 with the following term 
options:

– Option 1: 20 Years (3 Years interest only; 12/1/25 – 12/1/41)

– Option 2: 25 Years (3 Years interest only; 12/1/25 – 12/1/46)

– Option 3: 30 Years (3 Years interest only; 12/1/25 – 12/1/51)

 On November 17th Davenport received proposals / term sheets from six (6) financing institutions (in alphabetical order):

– Capital One;

– First Community Bank;

– First Horizon;

– Raymond James;

– Truist; and

– Webster Bank.

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



A B C D E F G H

Lender
Option 1:
20 Years

Option 2:
25 Years

Option 3:
30 Years

Call
Date

Prepayment 
Penalty

Fees Rate Expirat ion

If prepaid within 5 years

1.975%(1) 1.975%(1) Any Time

(20 Year Put) (20 Year Put)

Any Time

1.800%(2) Any Time

(10 Year Put)

Option A: 2.610%(2)

(10 Year Put)

Option B: 2.880%
(No Put)

12/1/2034

(1) After 20 Years, interest rate resets every five years at the 5-year Treasury + 0.75%
(2) Interest rate is fixed through put date on 12/1/2031, at which point the loan can be extended to 12/1/2041 or put back to VRA

 December 31, 2021

December 7, 2021
Once Accepted: Dec. 31, 2021

November 22, 2021
Once Accepted: Dec. 17, 2021

Any Time

November 24, 2021
Once Accepted: Dec. 31, 2021

 December 17, 2021

February 15, 2022
(90 Days)

Make Whole Call

Year 1: 103%
Year 2: 102%
Year 3 - 5: 101%

3

Capital One

First Community Bank

6 Webster Bank

5 Truist

Raymond James

First Horizon

1

2

4

2.480% N/A

N/A

N/A

None3.34%

2.747%2.567%

2.890%

1.975%

None

Lender's Counsel: $10,000
Appraisal: $10,000 

None
Option 1: 12/1/2031
Option 2: 12/1/2034

N/A

N/A

N/A

12/1/22 - 31: Make Whole
After 12/1/31: None

Make Whole Call

None Lender's Counsel: $10,000

0.25% = $40,000
Lender's Counsel: $8,500 

Lender's Counsel: $7,500

N/A

N/A

November 22, 2021

Summary of Proposals Received

3Virginia Resources Authority

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



A
Lender

Term
Option 1:
20 Years

Option 2:
25 Years

Option 3:
30 Years

Option 1:
20 Years

Option 2:
25 Years

Option 3:
30 Years

Option 1:
20 Years

Option 2:
25 Years

Option 3:
30 Years

1 Interest Rate 1.975% 1.975%(1)

(20 Year Put)
1.975%(1)

(20 Year Put)
2.567% 2.747% N/A 1.800% (2)

(10 Year Put)
N/A N/A

2 Prepayment Language

3 Acceptance | Rate Expiration

4 Bank Fees

5 Credit Approval

6 Other Considerations

(1) After 20 Years, interest rate resets every five years at the 5-year Treasury + 0.75%
(2) Interest rate is fixed through put date on 12/1/2031, at which point the loan can be extended to 12/1/2041 or put back to VRA

Loan is not yet fully credit approved.  Approval 
process consists of Senior Credit Committee approval 

followed by Loan Committee approval.

B

   Any Time
Year 1: 103% | Year 2: 102% | Year 3-5: 101%

 December 17, 2021

Lender's Counsel: $10,000
Appraisal: $10,000 

First  Community Bank

- Full appraisal required.
- Loan closing may extend beyond the calendar
  year given the lengthier credit approval process.  

C

 February 15, 2022  December 31, 2021

Callable in whole or in part on any date
Make Whole Prior to 12/1/31 | Thereafter at 100%

D

Callable in whole or in part on any date
Make Whole Call

First  Horizon Raymond James

0.25% of Loan Amount: $40,000
Lender's Counsel: $8,500

None

- No appraisal required
- County must provide annual audited financial 
  statements within 180 days of fiscal year end.

- County must provide annual audits within 210 days
  of the County's fiscal year-end and budgets within
  30 days of adoption.

Fully Approved
Credit has been pre-screened.

Amount and terms are subject to final credit approval.

November 22, 2021

Detailed Summary of Top 3 Proposals

4Virginia Resources Authority

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



A B
Lender First  Community Bank

1 Assumed Closing Date 12/17/2021
2

3 Sources 
4 Par Amount 16,030,000$                    
5 Total 16,030,000$             
6

7 Uses
8 Project Fund 15,839,568                      
9 Cost of Issuance / Bank Fees 190,038                           

10 Additional Proceeds 395                                   
11 Total 16,030,000$             
12

13 TIC / Bank Rate 1.975%
14 All-in TIC (1) 2.182%
15

16 Fiscal Year
17 2022 153,354$                         
18 2023 336,630                           
19 2024 336,630                           
20 2025 336,630                           
21 2026 776,958                           
22 2027 777,508                           
23 2028 777,848                           
24 2029 777,978                           
25 2030 777,898                           
26 2031 777,608                           
27 2032 777,108                           
28 2033 776,398                           
29 2034 775,478                           
30 2035 779,295                           
31 2036 777,850                           
32 2037 776,195                           
33 2038 779,278                           
34 2039 777,098                           
35 2040 779,655                           
36 2041 776,950                           
37 2042 778,983                           
38 2043 775,753                           
39 2044 777,260                           
40 2045 778,453                           
41 2046 779,330                           
42 2047 779,893                           
43 2048 780,140                           
44 2049 775,125                           
45 2050 779,795                           
46 2051 779,098                           
47 2052 778,085                           
48 Total 22,166,254$             

November 22, 2021 Virginia Resources Authority 7

Estimated Debt Service
Option 3: 30 Year Amortization

Denotes Rate Reset / Put Option
(1) Includes VRA’s 0.125% annual admin fee.

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



Municipal Advisor Disclosure

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) has clarified that a broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer engaging in municipal advisory activities outside the scope of underwriting a particular issuance of
municipal securities should be subject to municipal advisor registration. Davenport & Company LLC (“Davenport”) has registered as a municipal advisor with the SEC. As a registered municipal advisor Davenport may
provide advice to a municipal entity or obligated person. An obligated person is an entity other than a municipal entity, such as a not for profit corporation, that has commenced an application or negotiation with an entity to
issue municipal securities on its behalf and for which it will provide support. If and when an issuer engages Davenport to provide financial advisory or consultant services with respect to the issuance of municipal securities,
Davenport is obligated to evidence such a financial advisory relationship with a written agreement.

When acting as a registered municipal advisor Davenport is a fiduciary required by federal law to act in the best interest of a municipal entity without regard to its own financial or other interests. Davenport is not a fiduciary
when it acts as a registered investment advisor, when advising an obligated person, or when acting as an underwriter, though it is required to deal fairly with such persons.

This material was prepared by public finance, or other non-research personnel of Davenport. This material was not produced by a research analyst, although it may refer to a Davenport research analyst or research report.
Unless otherwise indicated, these views (if any) are the author’s and may differ from those of the Davenport fixed income or research department or others in the firm. Davenport may perform or seek to perform financial
advisory services for the issuers of the securities and instruments mentioned herein.

This material has been prepared for information purposes only and is not a solicitation of any offer to buy or sell any security/instrument or to participate in any trading strategy. Any such offer would be made only after a
prospective participant had completed its own independent investigation of the securities, instruments or transactions and received all information it required to make its own investment decision, including, where
applicable, a review of any offering circular or memorandum describing such security or instrument. That information would contain material information not contained herein and to which prospective participants are
referred. This material is based on public information as of the specified date, and may be stale thereafter. We have no obligation to tell you when information herein may change. We make no representation or warranty
with respect to the completeness of this material. Davenport has no obligation to continue to publish information on the securities/instruments mentioned herein. Recipients are required to comply with any legal or
contractual restrictions on their purchase, holding, sale, exercise of rights or performance of obligations under any securities/instruments transaction.

The securities/instruments discussed in this material may not be suitable for all investors or issuers. Recipients should seek independent financial advice prior to making any investment decision based on this material.
This material does not provide individually tailored investment advice or offer tax, regulatory, accounting or legal advice. Prior to entering into any proposed transaction, recipients should determine, in consultation with
their own investment, legal, tax, regulatory and accounting advisors, the economic risks and merits, as well as the legal, tax, regulatory and accounting characteristics and consequences, of the transaction. You should
consider this material as only a single factor in making an investment decision.

The value of and income from investments and the cost of borrowing may vary because of changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates, default rates, prepayment rates, securities/instruments prices, market indexes,
operational or financial conditions or companies or other factors. There may be time limitations on the exercise of options or other rights in securities/instruments transactions. Past performance is not necessarily a guide
to future performance and estimates of future performance are based on assumptions that may not be realized. Actual events may differ from those assumed and changes to any assumptions may have a material impact
on any projections or estimates. Other events not taken into account may occur and may significantly affect the projections or estimates. Certain assumptions may have been made for modeling purposes or to simplify the
presentation and/or calculation of any projections or estimates, and Davenport does not represent that any such assumptions will reflect actual future events. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that estimated
returns or projections will be realized or that actual returns or performance results will not materially differ from those estimated herein. This material may not be sold or redistributed without the prior written consent of
Davenport.

Version 1.13.14 ZL | TW

November 22, 2021 8Virginia Resources Authority



19938134v1 

RESOLUTION  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVING 
OF THE COUNTY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE PROPOSED SETTLEMENT OF 
OPIOID-RELATED CLAIMS AGAINST MCKESSON, CARDINAL HEALTH, 

AMERISOURCEBERGEN, JANSSEN, AND THEIR RELATED CORPORATE ENTITIES, 
AND DIRECTING THE COUNTY ATTORNEY OR ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE THE 

DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE COUNTY’S 
PARTICIPATION IN THE SETTLEMENTS 

 
 WHEREAS, the opioid epidemic that has cost thousands of human lives across the country 
also impacts the Commonwealth of Virginia and its cities and counties by adversely impacting, 
amongst other things, the delivery of emergency medical, law enforcement, criminal justice, 
mental health and substance abuse services, and other services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commonwealth of Virginia and its cities and counties have been required 
and will continue to be required to allocate substantial taxpayer dollars, resources, staff energy and 
time to address the damage the opioid epidemic has caused and continues to cause the citizens of 
Virginia; and 
 

WHEREAS, settlement proposals have been negotiated that will cause McKesson, 
Cardinal Health, AmerisourceBergen, and Janssen to pay up to $26 billion nationwide to resolve 
opioid-related claims against them; 

 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Russell County Board of Supervisors, 
this 6th day of December, 2021, approves of the County’s participation in the proposed settlement 
of opioid-related claims against McKesson, Cardinal Health, AmerisourceBergen, Janssen, and 
their related corporate entities, and directs the County Attorney or County Administrator to execute 
the documents necessary to effectuate the County’s participation in the settlements, including the 
required release of claims against settling entities. 
 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA  
 
 

By:___________________________________  
REBECCA DYE, CHAIRPERSON  
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
(SEAL) 



19938134v2 

RESOLUTION  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE RUSSELL COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVING 
OF THE COUNTY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE VIRGINIA OPIOID ABATEMENT FUND 
AND SETTLEMENT ALLOCATION MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (“MOU”) 

AND DIRECTING THE COUNTY ATTORNEY OR ADMINISTRATOR TO EXECUTE 
THE DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE 

THE COUNTY’S PARTICIPATION IN THE MOU  
 

 WHEREAS, the opioid epidemic that has cost thousands of human lives across the country 
also impacts the Commonwealth of Virginia and its cities and counties by adversely impacting, 
amongst other things, the delivery of emergency medical, law enforcement, criminal justice, 
mental health and substance abuse services, and other services; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Commonwealth of Virginia and its cities and counties have been required 
and will continue to be required to allocate substantial taxpayer dollars, resources, staff energy and 
time to address the damage the opioid epidemic has caused and continues to cause the citizens of 
Virginia; and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to advance their common interests, Virginia local governments and 

the Commonwealth of Virginia, through counsel, have extensively negotiated the terms of a 
memorandum of understanding relating to the allocation and use of litigation recoveries relating 
to the opioid epidemic;  

 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Russell County Board of Supervisors, 
this 6th day of December, 2021, hereby authorizes and approves of the Virginia Abatement Fund 
and Settlement Allocation Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) attached hereto and 
incorporated by reference as Exhibit “A,” and directs the County Attorney or County 
Administrator to execute the MOU. 
 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF RUSSELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA  
 
 

By:___________________________________  
REBECCA DYE, CHAIRPERSON  
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
(SEAL) 











Virginia Subdivision Escrow Agreement 
 

Litigating Subdivision:  Russell County State: Virginia 
Authorized Official:  Lonzo Lester, County Administrator  
Address 1:  P.O. Box 1208  
Address 2:  
City, State, Zip:  Lebanon, VA 24266  
Phone:  276-889-8000  
Email:  Lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us  

 
The Litigating Subdivision identified above (“Litigating Subdivision”) hereby provides 
Kaufman & Canoles, P.C., through W. Edgar Spivey, Esq. (“Escrow Agent”) the enclosed 
copies of the Litigating Subdivision’s endorsed Subdivision Settlement Participation Forms, to 
be held in escrow. The Subdivision Settlement Participation Forms apply                   respectively to (1) the 
National Settlement Agreement with McKesson Corporation, Cardinal Health, Inc., and 
AmerisourceBergen Corporation, dated July 21, 2021 (“Distributor Settlement”); and (2) the 
National Settlement Agreement with Janssen Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and                             its parent company 
Johnson & Johnson, dated July 21, 2021 (“J&J Settlement”). Pursuant to this                        Agreement, the 
Subdivision Settlement Participation Forms will be released only if there is 99% participation 
by the Litigating Subdivisions (as defined in the Distributor Settlement) in Virginia based upon 
population (the “99% Threshold”) as further explained                                below. 

 
Purpose of this Agreement 

 

By endorsing a Subdivision Settlement Participation Form in the Distributor Settlement and 
the J&J Settlement, a governmental entity agrees to participate in those settlements and release 
any legal claims it has or may have against those settling pharmaceutical companies. This 
Virginia Subdivision Escrow Agreement is meant to ensure that the legal claims of the above-
referenced Litigating Subdivision will be released only when 99% participation by Litigating 
Subdivisions has been reached based on population. That 99% Threshold is important because 
it signals to the settling pharmaceutical companies that the settlement has wide acceptance 
which will then secure significant incentive payments under these settlement agreements. 

 
Escrow 

 

The Escrow Agent is authorized to report the receipt of any Litigating Subdivision’s endorsed 
Subdivision Settlement Participation Forms to the Virginia Attorney General’s Office and to 
members of the Plaintiff’s Executive Committee (“PEC”).  The applicable documents shall be 
released by the Escrow Agent to the National Opioid Settlement Administrator if and when the 
99% Threshold has been reached for (i) the Distributor Settlement or (ii) the J&J Settlement. If 
by 5:00 p.m. EST on December 29, 2021, the Escrow Agent determines that the 99% Threshold 
has not been reached for the Distributor Settlement or the J&J Settlement, then the documents 
for that settlement being escrowed shall be returned to the Litigating Subdivisions and all copies 
retained by the Escrow Agent shall be destroyed.  In calculating populations for purposes of the 
99% Threshold, the Escrow Agent shall be supplied calculations by the PEC and shall be 
permitted, but shall not be required, to rely on such calculations.  The Escrow Agent shall not 



be liable for its role herein, and status as Escrow Agent does not create an attorney-client 
relationship with the above-referenced Litigating Subdivision. 

 
Virginia Litigating Subdivision Name  __Russell County____________                                                                   

 
      
Lonzo Lester Date 
County Administrator 



Settlement Participation Form 
 

Governmental Entity:  Russell County State: Virginia 
Authorized Official:  Lonzo Lester, County Administrator  
Address 1:  P.O. Box 1208  
Address 2:  
City, State, Zip:  Lebanon, VA 24266  
Phone:  276-889-8000  
Email:  Lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us  

 
The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain and in 
consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity pursuant to the Settlement 
Agreement dated July 21, 2021 (“Janssen Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned 
authorized official, hereby elects to participate in the Janssen Settlement, release all Released 
Claims against all Released Entities, and agrees as follows. 

 
1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Janssen Settlement, understands 

that all terms in this Election and Release have the meanings defined therein, and agrees 
that by this Election, the Governmental Entity elects to participate in the Janssen Settlement 
and become a Participating Subdivision as provided therein. 

 
2. The Governmental Entity shall, within 14 days of the Reference Date and prior to the filing 

of the Consent Judgment, dismiss with prejudice any Released Claims that it has filed. 
 

3. The Governmental Entity agrees to the terms of the Janssen Settlement pertaining to 
Subdivisions as defined therein. 

 
4. By agreeing to the terms of the Janssen Settlement and becoming a Releasor, the 

Governmental Entity is entitled to the benefits provided therein, including, if applicable, 
monetary payments beginning after the Effective Date. 

 
5. The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the Janssen 

Settlement solely for the purposes provided therein. 
 

6. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental 
Entity’s state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role 
as provided in, and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the Janssen Settlement. 

 
7. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Janssen Settlement as provided 

therein. 



8. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for all 
purposes in the Janssen Settlement, including but not limited to all provisions of Section IV 
(Release), and along with all departments, agencies, divisions, boards, commissions, 
districts, instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in their official capacity 
elected or appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency, person, or other entity 
claiming by or through any of the foregoing, and any other entity identified in the definition 
of Releasor, provides for a release to the fullest extent of its authority. As a Releasor, the 
Governmental Entity hereby absolutely, unconditionally, and irrevocably covenants not to 
bring, file, or claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be brought, filed, or claimed, or to 
otherwise seek to establish liability for any Released Claims against any Released Entity in 
any forum whatsoever. The releases provided for in the Janssen Settlement are intended by 
the Parties to be broad and shall be interpreted so as to give the Released Entities the 
broadest possible bar against any liability relating in any way to Released Claims and extend 
to the full extent of the power of the Governmental Entity to release claims. The Janssen 
Settlement shall be a complete bar to any Released Claim. 

 
9. In connection with the releases provided for in the Janssen Settlement, each Governmental 

Entity expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all provisions, rights, and 
benefits conferred by any law of any state or territory of the United States or other 
jurisdiction, or principle of common law, which is similar, comparable, or equivalent to § 
1542 of the California Civil Code, which reads: 

 
General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims that 
the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or her 
favor at the time of executing the release that, if known by him or her, would 
have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or released 
party. 

 
A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it knows, 
believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each Governmental 
Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, releases and 
discharges, upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may exist as of such 
date but which Releasors do not know or suspect to exist, whether through ignorance, 
oversight, error, negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and which, if known, would 
materially affect the Governmental Entities’ decision to participate in the Janssen 
Settlement. 

 
10. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Janssen Settlement, to 

which Governmental Entity hereby agrees. To the extent this Election and Release is 
interpreted differently from the Janssen Settlement in any respect, the Janssen Settlement 
controls. 



I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Election and Release on behalf 
of the Governmental Entity. 

 
Signature:    

 

Name:  Lonzo Lester  
 

Title:  County Administrator  
 

Date:    
 



Subdivision Settlement Participation Form 
 

Governmental Entity:  Russell County State: Virginia 
Authorized Official:  Lonzo Lester, County Administrator  
Address 1:  P.O. Box 1208  
Address 2:  
City, State, Zip:  Lebanon, VA 24266  
Phone:  276-889-8000  
Email:  Lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us  

 
The governmental entity identified above (“Governmental Entity”), in order to obtain and in 
consideration for the benefits provided to the Governmental Entity pursuant to the Settlement 
Agreement dated July 21, 2021 (“Distributor Settlement”), and acting through the undersigned 
authorized official, hereby elects to participate in the Distributor Settlement, release all Released 
Claims against all Released Entities, and agrees as follows. 

 
1. The Governmental Entity is aware of and has reviewed the Distributor Settlement, 

understands that all terms in this Participation Form have the meanings defined therein, and 
agrees that by signing this Participation Form, the Governmental Entity elects to participate 
in the Distributor Settlement and become a Participating Subdivision as provided therein. 
 

2. The Governmental Entity shall, within 14 days of the Reference Date and prior to the filing 
of the Consent Judgment, secure the dismissal with prejudice of any Released Claims that 
it has filed. 

 
3. The Governmental Entity agrees to the terms of the Distributor Settlement pertaining to 

Subdivisions as defined therein. 
 

4. By agreeing to the terms of the Distributor Settlement and becoming a Releasor, the 
Governmental Entity is entitled to the benefits provided therein, including, if applicable, 
monetary payments beginning after the Effective Date. 
 

5. The Governmental Entity agrees to use any monies it receives through the Distributor 
Settlement solely for the purposes provided therein. 
 

6. The Governmental Entity submits to the jurisdiction of the court in the Governmental 
Entity’s state where the Consent Judgment is filed for purposes limited to that court’s role 
as provided in, and for resolving disputes to the extent provided in, the Distributor 
Settlement. The Governmental Entity likewise agrees to arbitrate before the National 
Arbitration Panel as provided in, and for resolving disputes to the extent otherwise provided 
in, the Distributor Settlement. 



7. The Governmental Entity has the right to enforce the Distributor Settlement as provided 
therein. 

 
8. The Governmental Entity, as a Participating Subdivision, hereby becomes a Releasor for all 

purposes in the Distributor Settlement, including, but not limited to, all provisions of Part 
XI, and along with all departments, agencies, divisions, boards, commissions, districts, 
instrumentalities of any kind and attorneys, and any person in their official capacity elected 
or appointed to serve any of the foregoing and any agency, person, or other entity claiming 
by or through any of the foregoing, and any other entity identified in the definition of 
Releasor, provides for a release to the fullest extent of its authority. As a Releasor, the 
Governmental Entity hereby absolutely, unconditionally, and irrevocably covenants not to 
bring, file, or claim, or to cause, assist or permit to be brought, filed, or claimed, or to 
otherwise seek to establish liability for any Released Claims against any Released Entity in 
any forum whatsoever. The releases provided for in the Distributor Settlement are intended 
by the Parties to be broad and shall be interpreted so as to give the Released Entities the 
broadest possible bar against any liability relating in any way to Released Claims and extend 
to the full extent of the power of the Governmental Entity to release claims.  The Distributor 
Settlement shall be a complete bar to any Released Claim. 

 
9. The Governmental Entity hereby takes on all rights and obligations of a Participating 

Subdivision as set forth in the Distributor Settlement. 
 

10. In connection with the releases provided for in the Distributor Settlement, each 
Governmental Entity expressly waives, releases, and forever discharges any and all 
provisions, rights, and benefits conferred by any law of any state or territory of the United 
States or other jurisdiction, or principle of common law, which is similar, comparable, or 
equivalent to § 1542 of the California Civil Code, which reads: 

 

General Release; extent. A general release does not extend to claims that 
the creditor or releasing party does not know or suspect to exist in his or 
her favor at the time of executing the release, and that if known by him or 
her would have materially affected his or her settlement with the debtor or 
released party. 

 
A Releasor may hereafter discover facts other than or different from those which it 
knows, believes, or assumes to be true with respect to the Released Claims, but each 
Governmental Entity hereby expressly waives and fully, finally, and forever settles, 
releases and discharges, upon the Effective Date, any and all Released Claims that may 
exist as of such date but which Releasors do not know or suspect to exist, whether 
through ignorance, oversight, error, negligence or through no fault whatsoever, and 
which, if known, would materially affect the Governmental Entities’ decision to 
participate in the Distributor Settlement. 



11. Nothing herein is intended to modify in any way the terms of the Distributor Settlement, 
to which Governmental Entity hereby agrees. To the extent this Participation Form is 
interpreted differently from the Distributor Settlement in any respect, the Distributor 
Settlement controls. 

 
I have all necessary power and authorization to execute this Participation Form on behalf of 
the Governmental Entity. 

 
Signature:    

 

Name:  Lonzo Lester  
 

Title:  County Administrator  
 

Date:    
 



 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item C-1 – C-12 
137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

                          Meeting: 12/6/21             4:00 PM 
 

 

 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 
The County Administrator Reports & Request for December 2021: 

 
      REPORTS 
 

1. 2022 VACO Preliminary Legislative Program….…………………………………...C-1 
 

2. CPPDC Roadmap to Economic Resiliency………………………………………….C-2 
 

3. Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC) – Three Rivers Destination                                   
Center Grant - $209,590………………………………………………………………...C-3 

 
4. RC Abstract of Votes……………………………………………………………………C-4 

 
REQUESTS 

 
5. RC Litter Officer – RC Building Inspector Office…………………………………..C-5 

 
6. Litter Prevention and Recycling Program Grant…………………………………..C-6 

 
7. RC PSA Fire Hydrant Purchase Request……………………………………………C-7 

 
8. VDOT Notice of Intent to Discontinue of Rte. 743 (Rollercoaster Rd.)………...C-8 

 
9. Animal Control Administrative Assistant…………………………………………...C-9 

 
10. RC Employees Christmas Payroll…………………………………………………….C-10 

 
11. RC BOS Annual Employee Turkey…………………………………………………...C-11 

 
12. Curtis Salyers Property Easement – RC Planning Commission Review……...C-12 

 
       

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 
Board Discretion.  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

Russell County Government Center 
137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 

www.russellcountyva.us 

http://www.russellcountyva.us/
http://www.russellcountyva.us/


MORGAN GRIFFITH 

APPALACHIAN REGIONAL COMMISSION AWARDS 
$209,590 GRANT FOR THREE RIVER DESTINATION 
CENTER 
Thursday, October 28, 2021 I Kevin Baird (202-225-3861)
Tags: Economx 

The Appalachian Regional Commission (ARC) has awarded $209,590 to the Heart of Appalachia 
Tourism Authority for the development of the Three River Destination Center in St. Paul. 
Congressman Morgan Griffith (R-VA) issued the following statement: 

"Tourism and outdoor recreation are important economic drivers in the coalfields of Virginia. Today's 
award of $209,590 by ARC for the Three River Destination Center will support continued progress in 
making Southwest Virginia a destination for nature lovers and outdoor recreation enthusiasts." 

Further Information 

According to a project description provided by ARC, the grant will support site preparation and 
architectural and engineering design plans. The plans will focus on a 2-acre site development plan to 
include land surveying, erosion and sediment control design, mechanical, electrical, and plumbing 
design, the development of site utilities including water and sewer, and relocation of existing electrical 
and phone utilities. 

### 













From: ceds@deq.virginia.gov
To: lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us; brian.ferguson@russellcountyva.us
Cc: brian.ferguson@russellcountyva.us
Subject: FY2022 Non-Competitive Litter Prevention and Recycling Grant
Date: Tuesday, November 23, 2021 8:06:15 AM

COMMONWEALTH of VIRGINIA

Ann F. Jennings
Secretary of Natural

Resources

DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

Street address: 1111 E. Main Street, Suite 1400,
Richmond, Virginia 23219

Mailing address: P.O. Box 1105, Richmond,
Virginia 23218

www.deq.virginia.gov

David K. Paylor
Director

(804) 698-4000
1-800-592-5482

November 23, 2021

Lonzo Lester
County Administrator
Russell County
137 Highland Dr
PO Box 1208
Lebanon, VA 24266

Dear Lonzo Lester:

I am pleased to inform you that a grant award of $16,225.00 has been approved for the Litter
Prevention and Recycling Program activities for the period from July 1, 2021 to June 30,
2022. DEQ’s calculation of your grant award was based upon the following distribution:

Russell County: $11,223.00
Town of Cleveland: $1,329.00
Town of Honaker: $1,329.00
Town of Lebanon: $2,344.00

Processing of the grant awards is underway, and a payment for this amount should be received
within the next two weeks if funds can be transferred electronically (EDI) or in thirty days if
processing by check is required.

If you have any questions or need additional information, please contact Prina Chudasama at
prina.chudasama@deq.virginia.gov or at (804) 698-4159.

Sincerely,

mailto:ceds@deq.virginia.gov
mailto:lonzo.lester@russellcountyva.us
mailto:brian.ferguson@russellcountyva.us
mailto:brian.ferguson@russellcountyva.us
https://www.deq.virginia.gov/
mailto:prina.chudasama@deq.virginia.gov


Sanjay Thirunagari
Manager, Recycling and Litter Programs
Division of Land Protection & Revitalization









Lebanon/New Garden Fire Hydrants

# Location Condition Latitude Longitude Notes

1 Rosedale Heights #1 Good 36.96708 -81.93643

2 Rosedale Heights #2 Good 36.96864 -81.93555

3 Route 80 #1 Bad 36.96718 -81.93866 Needs Top Cap  & Rod

4 Route 80 #2 Good 36.96445 -81.93645

5 Old Rosedale Estates Bad 36.96519 -81.94057

6 Poor Farm Good 36.90999 -82.03457

7 Poor Farm Good 36.91094 82.03171

8 Poor Farm Good 36.91156 -82.02581

9 Poor Farm Good 36.91298 -82.02582

10 Poor Farm Good 36.91433 -82.01997

11 Poor Farm Good 36.91510 -82.01456

12 Poor Farm Good 36.91283 -82.02268

13 US HWY 19 Good 36.91010 -82.02998

14 US HWY 19 Good 36.91094 -82.02485

15 US HWY 19 Good 36.91171 -82.02033

16 ROUTE 656 Bad 36.91600 -82.00655 Needs All New Bottom Valve goes in Muller

17 ROUTE 656 Good 36.91449 -81.99740

18 ROUTE 656 Good 36.90915 -81.99255

19 Creekside Good 36.90806 -81.99597

20 Creekside Good 36.90564 -82.00137

21 Creekside Good 36.90254 -82.00989

22 Creekside Good 36.90125 -82.01647

23 US HWY 19 CABINET SHOP Bad 36.92044 -82.00569 Needs All Guts & Top

24 Norfield Rd Behind Cabinet ShopGood 36.92187 -82.00820

25 US HWY 19 Good 36.92448 -81.99942

26 Ridgewood Good 36.93070 -81.99967

27 Ridgewood Good 36.93472 -81.99685

28 Ridgewood Good 36.93352 -82.00040

29 Hokie Hill Good 36.93401 -81.98717

30 Fairview Good 36.93620 -81.98230

31 Fairview Good 36.93818 -81.98610

32 Fairview Good 36.94246 -81.98814

33 US HWY 19 Good 36.93410 -81.97706

34 Elk Garden Good 36.93593 -81.96666

35 Elk Garden Good 36.93291 -81.96542

36 Belfast School Rd Good 36.97904 -81.86697

37 Belfast School Rd Good 36.97373 -81.86552

38 Mountain Rd Good 36.97025 -81.86220

39 Whites Sub Good 36.97300 -81.85296

40 Whites Sub Good 36.97127 -81.85238

41 Whites Sub Good 36.96827 -81.85158

42 Ratcliff Ln Good 36.97543 -81.88719

43 Ratcliff Ln Good 36.98044 -81.88694

44 Ratcliff Ln Good 36.98421 -81.88491

Page 1



45 Samuel Ratcliff Dr Good 36.98236 -81.88454

46 Dale Mutter Ln Good 36.97365 -81.88940

47 Settle Ln Good 36.96843 -81.90943

48 Mountain Rd Good 36.99504 -81.89109

49 Mountain Rd Good 36.95675 -81.88618

50 Halland Sub Rd Bad 36.96036 -81.88441 American Darlin

51 Mountain Rd Good 36.95828 -81.88022

52 Mountain Rd Good 36.96093 -81.87696

53 Knobbs Ln Bad 36.96153 -81.88088 AVK

54 Mountain Rd Good 36.95634 -81.90123

55 Mountain Rd Good 36.95588 -81.90758

56 Mountain Rd Good 36.95338 -81.91500

57 RT 19 Rosedale Good 36.96318 -81.92302

58 Old Doninion Dr Bad 36.96416 -81.91903 Fix Valve Riser

59 RT 80 Old Rosedale Ln Good 36.96040 -81.93224

60 Rose Dr Good 36.96307 -81.93323

61 Oakvale Ave Good 36.96289 -81.93701

62 Sunset Rd Good 36.96033 -81.94107

63 Sunset Rd Good 36.96067 -81.94435

64 Lake Hill Rd Good 36.96422 -81.94180

65 Sunset Rd Good 36.96380 -81.94078

66 Mountain View Rd Good 36.96383 -81.93732

67 Oak Cir Good 36.95976 -81.93500

68 Oak Cir Good 36.96000 -81.93877

69 Oak Hill Ln Good 36.95962 -81.94376

70 Grandview Ct Good 36.95859 -81.94180

71 Grandview Ct Good 36.95721 -81.94312

72 Rt 67 (Below Ball Field) Good 37.02126 -81.93994

73 Lance Dr Good 37.01197 -81.93941

74 Rt 67 (Honaker Tire) Good 37.02304 -81.93735

75 Gardner Rd @ Church Good 37.02435 -81.93081

76 Gardner Rd in Curve Good 37.02702 -81.92922

77 Gardner Rd Good 37.02865 -81.93372

78 Gardner Rd Good 37.03107 -81.93554

79 Kents Ridge Rd @ Church Good 37.03589 -81.91308

80 Community Church Rd Good 37.03615 -81.91507

81 Rt 67 Before School Good 37.04001 -81.91934

82 Rt 67 Store Good 37.04189 -81.92024

83 Rt 67 Vandyke Cir Good 37.04378 -81.92103

84 37.04598 -81.92164

85 Wysor Valley Good 37.03307 -81.93743

86 Wysor Valley Good 37.03555 -81.94619

87 Wysor Valley Good 37.03403 -81.95137

88 Wysor Valley Good 37.03435 -81.95551

89 Wysor Valley Good 37.03244 -81.96166

90 Wysor Valley Good 37.03005 -81.96727

91 Big A Good 37.03073 -81.98365

Page 2



92 Big A Bad 37.03356 -81.98574 Need AVR 

93 Big A Avondale Cir Bad 37.03788 -81.98740 Kennedy Valve Stand Needs Dug Out

94 Big A Compton Ln Bad 37.03671 -81.99113 Kennedy Leaking

95 Big A Amber Hill Good 37.04054 -81.98992

96 Big A Bad 37.04142 -81.99613 Gone/Broke Off

97 Big A Good 37.03709 -82.00462 *Works Valve Stand been Paved Over

98 Big A Good 37.03290 -82.00391

99 Big A Bad 37.04137 -82.00701 Kennedy Been Hit

100 Big A Bad 37.04273 -82.01251 Can Barely Turn On

101 Big A Good 37.04292 -82.01539

102 Big A Good 37.04709 -82.01769 *Works Valve Stand been Paved Over

103 Big A Sykes Store Bad 37.04355 -82.02514 Kennedy Bagged

104 Big A Good 37.04568 -82.02449

105 Big A Loyd Wilson Good 37.05491 -82.02582

106 Finney Rd Good 37.04072 -82.02823

107 Finney Rd Good 37.03580 -82.03268

108 Campbell Hollow Good 37.03441 -82.03169

109 Finney Rd Clifford Hess Good 37.03022 -82.04460

110 Finney Rd Donavan Barton Good 37.02652 -82.05096

111 Finney Rd Good 37.02259 -82.05526

112 Finney Rd Good 37.01512 -82.06761

113 Finney Rd Good 37.00552 -82.07055

114 Back Valley Bad 37.00805 -82.07604 Knocked over AUR

115 Crackers Neck Good 37.02196 -82.07556

116 Sandy Ridge Good 37.00439 -82.08405

117 Sandy Ridge Good 37.00621 -82.08685

118 Jackie Dye Hollow Good 37.11883 -81.93711

119 Jackie Dye Hollow Good 37.12231 -81.93151

120 Lynn Spring Bad 37.11464 -81.94131 American Darlin Bagged

121 Lynn Spring Good 37.11139 -81.94038

122 Lynn Spring Good 37.10908 -81.93933

123 Lynn Spring Good 37.10637 -81.93726

124 Cobblestone Dr Good 37.00735 -81.80169

125 Green Hill Good 37.00733 -81.80643

126 Beths Ln Bad 37.00691 -81.80493 Got to Fix Valve Riser

127 Rt 770 Good 37.00491 -81.81247

128 Acre Ln Good 37.00091 -81.82025

129 Acre Ln Good 37.00285 -81.81781

130 Indian Hills Good 36.99760 -81.81619

131 Rt 19 United Auto Good 36.98892 -81.84599

132 Rt 19 Cedar Ridge Trking Good 36.99075 -81.84264

133 Spring Hill Sub Good 36.99496 -81.82466

134 Spring Hill Sub Bad 36.99225 -81.82362 American Darlin

135 Summit Dr Good 36.99109 -81.82559

136 Spring Hill Sub Good 36.99109 -81.82477

137 Spring Hill Sub Good 36.98694 -81.82320

138 Spring Hill Sub Good 36.98476 -81.82658

Page 3



139 Ridge St Bad 36.98844 -81.82172 American Darlin

140 Hickory St Good 36.98983 -81.82233

141 Rt 19 Spring Hill Sub Bad 36.99751 -81.82598 American Darlin

142 Rt 19 (Belfast) Good 36.99856 -81.82312

143 Belfast Mills Rd Good 36.98334 -81.85335

144 Yates Est Bad 36.98452 -81.85810

145 J Frandk Taylor Good 36.98080 -81.86409

146 J Frandk Taylor Bad 36.98599 -81.86714 Fix Valve Riser

147 J Frandk Taylor Good 36.98942 -81.86901

148 J Frandk Taylor Good 36.99151 -81.86787

149 J Frandk Taylor Good 36.99422 -81.86821

150 Dixie St Good 36.99005 -81.86532

151 Dillion St Good 36.98633 -81.86624

152 Dillion St Good 36.98440 -81.86454

153 Community Medical Care Good 36.81425 -82.12487

154 Chrysler Dr Good 36.81782 -82.12832

155 Chrysler Dr Bad 36.81801 -82.12960 AUK Model 27-80 Can't get on Valve Hyd nipple broke off

156 Apple Tree Ln Good 36.81934 -82.13301

157 Hansonville Valero Good 36.82354 -82.14174

158 Evergreen Dr Good 36.81126 -82.16629

159 Clinchview Dr Good 36.81521 -82.15262

160 Old Postal Rd Good 36.82307 -82.14304

161 A Hanson Dr Good 36.82763 -82.14380

162 Carter McGlothlin Good 36.83967 -82.13923

163 Purcell Rd Good 36.84271 -82.14013

164 Purcell Rd Good 36.84613 -82.14414

165 Linda St Good 36.85108 -82.14320

166 Cross Ridge Rd Good 36.84877 -82.14330

167 Shady Ln Good 36.85012 -82.14703

168 Purcell Rd Good 36.85352 -82.14917

169 Glenn View Rd Good 36.85582 -82.14723

170 Old G&G Sporting Goods Good 36.84482 -82.13213

171 Hemp Good 36.84693 -82.12659

172 Mountain Meadows 2 Good 36.84756 -82.12450

173 Mountain Meadows re Good 36.84582 -82.12365

174 Wood Land Crt Bad 36.85223 -82.12147 AUR 27-80

175 Hansonville Old Exvator Good 36.85479 -82.11507

176 Green Valley Rd Good 36.85853 -82.11173

177 Sunny Hill Dr Good 36.86054 -82.10437

178 Deer Run Good 36.85843 -82.10122

179 Green Valley Rd Good 36.86337 -82.09930

180 Scenic Bad 36.86632 -82.09416 AUR 27-80 Can't turn on

181 Valley View Good 36.86909 -82.09694

182 Green Valley Tank Good 36.86182 -82.09024

183 Rolling Mellows Rd Good 36.86575 -82.09089

184 Green Valley Rd Good 36.86900 -82.08840

185 Daisy Dr Good 36.87658 -82.09047

Page 4



186 Coal Tipple Holler Good 36.87692 -82.09615

187 Coal Tipple Holler Good 36.88210 -82.09715

188 Green Valley Rd Good 36.87296 -82.07210

189 Shaw St Good 36.87371 -82.06829

190 Green Valley Rd Good 36.87641 -82.06338

191 Deel St Good 36.88233 -82.06569

192 Deel St Good 36.87953 -82.06450

193 Kennedy St Good 36.87914 -82.06294

194 Kennedy St Good 36.88210 -82.06285

195 Salyer St Good 36.88120 -82.06408

196 Echo Ln Good 36.87834 -82.06255

197 Pioner Dr Good 36.86339 -82.11305

198 Willis Chapel Good 36.86615 -82.11407

199 New Garden Rd Good 37.00919 -81.98366

200 New Garden Rd Good 37.00470 -82.00019

201 New Garden Rd Good 37.00066 -82.00751

202 New Garden Rd Good 36.99947 -82.01111

203 New Garden Rd Wayne Kisser Bad 36.99633 -82.01365 AVR Model 27-80 

204 New Garden Rd Good 36.99565 -82.02110

205 New Garden Rd Good 36.99277 -82.02690

206 New Garden Rd Carl Maxfield Bad 36.98843 -82.03463 AVR Model 27-80 

207 Finney Rd Good 36.99050 -82.04656

208 Finney Rd Good 36.99504 -82.05509

209 John Sims Hill Rd Harvey Hart Bad 36.99055 -82.05858 AVR Model 27-80 

210 Drill Rd Bad 37.02727 -81.96829 American Darline Valve Bad Pressure

211 Drill Rd Good 37.02937 -81.96960

212 Drill Rd 620 Tiger Run Bad 37.03016 -81.96984 Been took Out

213 Drill Rd Bad 37.03625 -81.97338 Mueller Been Hit

214 Jackson Chapel Rd Good 37.03973 -81.97838 Second House on Right

215 Drill Rd Bad 37.04457 -81.98205 Muller 

216 Laural Branch Rd Good 37.04855 -81.99262

217 Laural Branch Rd Good 37.04855 -81.98837

218 Drill Rd Good 37.04558 -81.98598

219 Drill Rd Good 37.05183 -81.98587

220 Drill Rd Bad 37.05598 -81.98501 Been took Out

221 Old Drill Rd Good 37.08308 -81.99769

222 Drill Rd Community Center Good 37.09537 -81.99802

223 Drill Rd WM Heltons Rd Bad 37.11472 -81.99765 Been took Out

224 Miller Creek Peggy Grocery Good 37.09830 -81.99952

225 Miller Creek Strouth Creek Good 37.10277 -81.95593

226 Perkin Hollow Good 37.05710 -81.94647

227 Miller Creek Good 37.05524 -81.94016

228 Miller Creek Good 37.05665 -81.93368

229  Miller Creek Quality Paving Bad 37.05985 -81.93081 Been took Out

230 Miller Creek Bad 37.05817 -81.92895 American Darline Valve  5 1/4

231 Lynn Springs Rd Good 37.06860 -81.92827

232 Lynn Springs Rd Good 37.07059 -81.92542

Page 5



233 Lynn Springs Rd Good 37.07349 -81.92340

234 Lynn Springs Rd Good 37.07934 -81.91980

235 Lynn Springs Rd Good 37.08039 -81.92292

236 Lynn Springs Rd Good 37.09994 -81.93139

237 Lynn Springs Rd Good 37.10254 -81.93205

238 Lynn Springs Rd Good 37.10591 -81.93460

239 Horton Ridge Good 37.08502 -81.87310

240 Horton Ridge Good 37.08470 -81.87609

241 Horton Ridge Good 37.08499 -81.87940

242 Horton Ridge Good 37.08888 -81.87968

243 Horton Ridge Good 37.09300 -81.88326

244 Horton Ridge Dennis White Ch Bad 37.09771 -81.88703 Muller 5 1/4 BSR

245 Horton Ridge Good 37.10366 -81.88909

246 Horton Ridge Good 37.10578 -81.89588

247 Horton Ridge Good 37.11161 -81.89487

248 Horton Ridge Good 37.11465 -81.90108

249 Horton Ridge Good 37.11619 -81.90437

250 Horton Ridge Good 37.12014 -81.91306

251 Horton Ridge Good 37.11835 -81.91532

252 Pine Creek Bad 37.07935 -81.90929 American Darline

253 Pine Creek Good 37.08229 -81.91034

254 Pine Creek Good 37.08806 -81.91499

255 Pine Creek Bad 37.08918 -81.91526 Top Valve 

256 Pine Creek Good 37.09444 -81.91619

257 Pine Creek Good 37.09844 -81.91912

258 Pine Creek Bad 37.10073 -81.91982 American Darline

259 Pine Creek Good 37.10274 -81.92016

260 Pine Creek Good 37.10560 -81.92042

261 Pine Creek Bad 37.10840 -81.91877 American Darline

262 Pine Creek Good 37.11084 -81.91719

263 Pine Creek Good 37.11528 -81.91718

264 Pine Creek Good 37.11759 -81.91763

265 Pine Creek Good 37.11854 -81.91787

266 Pine Creek Bad 37.12431 -81.91904 American Darline

267 Pine Creek Good 37.12543 -81.92337

268 Pine Creek Good 37.12669 -81.92758

269 Pine Creek Good 37.12760 -81.93052

Page 6



270 Swords Creek Rd Bill Cumbee Good 37.04809 -81.82237

271 Swords Creek Rd Block Church Good 37.05050 -81.92633

272 Swords Creek Bad 37.05347 -81.92757 American Darline Need Repair or Replaced

273 Swords Creek Bad 37.05707 -81.92800 American Darline

274 Swords Creek Good 37.07066 -81.92167

275 Swords Creek Good 37.07655 -81.90816

276 Swords Creek Bad 37.07481 -81.90196 American Darline been hit

277 Swords Creek Good 37.07552 -81.89468

278 Swords Creek Bad 37.07538 -81.88942 American Darline 

279 Swords Creek Good 37.07445 -81.88740

280 Swords Creek Good 37.07392 -81.88525

281 Swords Creek Bad 37.07559 -81.88009 American Darline Needs Lock Ring

282 Swords Creek Good 37.07622 -81.87687

283 Swords Creek Good 37.07851 -81.87142

284 Maple Gap Good 37.07715 -81.87201

285 Maple Gap Tuggle Hollow Good 37.07509 -81.86703

286 Maple Gap Good 37.07041 -81.86047

287 Maple Gap Good 37.06209 -81.86575

288 Maple Gap Good 37.06007 -81.87202

289 Maple Gap Good 37.05893 -81.87979

290 Maple Gap Clarks Valley Est Good 37.06043 -81.88545

291 Maple Gap Good 37.05847 -81.88533

292 Maple Gap Good 37.05720 -81.88728

293 Maple Gap Good 37.05697 -81.89026

294 Maple Gap Good 37.05592 -81.89345

295 Maple Gap Good 37.06211 -81.89149

296 Maple Gap Clark Valley Good 37.05838 -81.89921

297 Maple Gap Bad 37.05005 -81.90630 Been Hit Maybe Broke

298 Maple Gap Kenny Taylor Good 37.03614 -81.91704

299 Maple Gap Good 37.04150 -81.91214

300 South River Good 37.03582 -81.91322

301 South River Good 37.03606 -81.91507

Needs Repaired

Has Been Fixed

Needs Replaced

Page 7



1 
 

Fire Hydrants - Castlewood 

Originally created by and for use of RCPSA Castlewood area. Labeling gives general directions. Use GPS coordinates for actual hydrant location. 

1. Route 58 # 1    good   36.85809  -82.28421    Route 58               

2. Route 58 # 2    good   36.86401  -82.29106 

3. Route 58 # 3    good   36.86548  -82.29740 

4. Route 58 # 4    good   36.86701  -82.29898 

5. Route 58 # 5    good  36.87155  -82.30022 

6. Route 58 # 6    good  36.87353  -82.30079   

7. Route 58 # 7    needs replaced 36.87652  -82.30234     can’t be used Bagged 

8. Route 58 # 8    good 36.87985  -82.30374 

9. Route 58 # 9    repair top pin  36.88293  -82.30444 Alabama 445029  valve is off can be used Bagged 

10. Route 58 # 10 replace and valve  36.88966  -82.30469    cant be used Bagged 

11. Stand St # 1 good  36.87995  -82.30571 

12. Miners Dr UMWA # 1 good  36.87721  -82.30288 

13. Westview VA Dr # 1    good  36.88337  -82.30288 

14. Westview VA Dr # 2    good  36.88443  -82.30330 

15. Westview VA Dr # 3    good 36.88506  -82.30091 

16. Legal aid # 1   good      36.89199  -82.30442   Legal Aid                                                           

17. Legal Aid # 2  good       36.89440  -82.30331 

18. Legal Aids # 3   good      36.89362  -82.30655 

19. Legal Aid # 4  good       36.89578  -82.30996 

20. Legal Aid # 5  good       36.89834  -82.31226 

21. Greystone # 1  good       36.89961  -82.30096  Greystone 

22. Greystone # 2 good        36.90371  -82.30000 

23. Banners Corner # 1 good        36.87680  -82.30420  Banners corner 

24. Banner Corner # 2 good  36.87547  -82.30602 

25. Route 65 # 1 repair weep     36.87021  -82.30431  AWWA 2000 85FGAA  

26. Route 65 # 2 good        36.86943  -82.30956 

27. Chiggersville # 1 good        36.86807  -82.31017  Chiggersville 

28. Chiggersville # 2 good        36.86943  -82.31134 

29. Longview # 1   good       36.86783  -82.32211  Longview 



2 
 

30. Mew Road # 1 good        36.85988  -82.33627  Mew Road 

31. Mew Road # 2 good        36.85814  -82.34814 

32. Mew Road # 3 good        36.85363  -82.37600 

33. Mew Road # 4  good       36.84713  -82.37776 

34. Mew Road # 5  repair weep    36.84082  -82.38063 AWWA 2002 valve is off can be used Bagged 

35. Mew Road # 6  good       36.83843  -82.38508 

36. Mew Road # 7  good       36.84170  -82.41172 

37. Chestnut Ridge # 1   good       36.85614  -82.36988  Chestnut ridge 

38. Ervin Town # 1 replace      36.85272  -82.34727 AWWA 2002 can’t be used Bagged Ervin Town Bagged 

39. Ervin Town # 2    good      36.84789  -82.34778  Ervin town 

40. Ervin Town # 3    good      36.84674  -82.34994 

41. Buffalo # 1 good      36.86660  -82.34792 Buffalo 

42. Buffalo # 2  good     36.87680  -82.35611 

43. Memorial Dr. # 1   good    36.87285  -82.29625  Memorial Dr 

44. Memorial Dr. # 2   good    36.87358  -82.29360 

45. Memorial Dr. # 3   hit by car no hydrant    36.87628  -82.28761 

46. Memorial Dr. # 4   good    36.87756  -82.28550 

47. Memorial Dr. # 5   good    36.87892  -82.28164 

48. Memorial Dr. # 6   good    36.87891   -82.28160 

49. Red Oak # 1    good    36.87789  -82.27329  Red Oak 

50. Red Oak # 2    good    36.87939  -82.27592 

51. Red Oak # 3    good    36.88660  -82.27751 

52. Red Oak # 4    good    36.89029  -82.28032 

53. Red Oak # 5    good    36.91682  -82.25197 

54. Red Oak # 6   good      36.91981  -82.24683 

55. Calvary Baptist # 1     good    36.93609  -82.26173  Calvary Baptist 

56. Hamlin Creek # 1    repair weep  36.92804  -82.27841   Hamlin Creek valve is off can be used Bagged 

57. Hamlin Creek # 2    good36.92455  -82.27610 

58. Gravel Lick # 1    good   36.92852  -82.27785   Gravel Lick 

59. Gravel Lick # 2    old main line 36.93136  -82.27431 needs to be removed Bagged 

60. Gravel Lick # 3    old main line 36.93246  -82.25645 needs to be removed Bagged 

61. Gravel lick # 4    repair weep 36.93902  -82.25645   Mueller 1974 is valve is off but can be used Bagged 



3 
 

62. Gravel Lick # 5    good 36.94266  -82.25095 

63. Gravel Lick # 6    good 36.95649  -82.17883 

64. AEP plant # 1   good 36.93562  -82.19750 Carbo  

65. Church Ave # 2   good 36.92816  -82.19369 

66. Coal Lane # 1    good   36.96199  -82.17681  Coal Lane 

67. Coal Lane # 2    good   36.96323  -82.17620 

68. Coal Lane # 3    good 36.96258  -82.17742 

69. Coal Lane # 4    good 36.96347  -82.17731 

70. Coal Lane # 5    good 36.96385  -82.17620 

71. South Clinchfield  # 1    repair weep  36.96161  -82.17604   Mueller1983  South Clinchfield valve is off but can be used Bagged 

72. Ivy Ridge # 1   repair weep  36.96263  -82.17585 AWWA 2000 valve is off but can be used Bagged                                

73. Ivy Ridge # 2   good   36.96112  -82.17480 Ivy Ridge 

74. Ivy Ridge # 3   good 36.96240  -82.16866 

75. Back Valley # 1   good   36.97196  -82.14427  Back Valley 

76. Back Valley # 2   good 36.97561  -82.13788 

77. Back Valley # 3   good 36.98254  -82.12922 

78. Back Valley # 4   good 36.99875  -82.10016 

79. Bunch Town # 1    good 36.97265  -82.29610   Bunch Town 

80. Bunch Town # 2    good 36.97540  -82.29890 

81. Bunch Town # 3    good 36.97749  -82.29774 

82. Bunch Town # 4    good 36.97839  -82.29748  

83. Lower Bear Wallow # 1     good 36.97707  -82.29335  Lower Bear Wallow 

84. Lower Bear Wallow # 2     repair weep 36.97651  -82.28756 Mueller 1972 valve is off can be used Bagged 

85. Lower Bear Wallow # 3  good    36.97666  -82.29019 

86. Straight Hollow # 1    good   36.98435  -82.29261   Straight Hollow 

87. Straight Hollow # 2    repair weep 36.98502  -82.29293  Mueller 445310 valve is off but can be used Bagged                            

88. Straight Hollow  # 3    good 36.98869  -82.28913 

89. Straight Hollow # 4    good 36.99037 -82.28714 

90. Straight Hollow # 5    good 36.99263  -82.28415 

91. Hummingbird # 1    good   36.98293  -82.29571  Hummingbird 

92. Sawmill Hollow # 1   repair weep   36.98064  -82.30041  Sawmill Hollow Mueller 1972 valve is off can be used Bagged 

93. Sawmill Hollow # 2   good  36.98079  -82.30431    West Dante 



4 
 

94. West Dante # 1   good  36.97435  -82.33192 

95. Circle Drive # 1    good   36.87414  -82.29246   Circle Drive  

96. Circle Drive # 2    good   36.86739  -82.29535 

97. Claremont # 1   good 36.88263  -82.26478   Claremont  

98. Claremont # 2   good 36.88528  -82.26587 

99. Claremont # 3   good 36.88754  -82.26163 

100. Claremont # 4   repair weep 36.88541  -82.25887 Mueller 2007 valve is off can be used Bagged 

101. Claremont # 5   good 36.88593  -82.26130 

102. Claremont # 6   good 36.88514  -82.26188 

103. Claremont #7 good 36.88453  -82.26281 

104. Temple Acres # 1    good  36.86733  -82.29046  Temple Acres 

105. Meade’s Addition # 1  good  36.87782  -82.28925   Meades Addition 

106. Moorefield Bottom # 1  repair  36.91662 -82.29349  Needs top can be used valve is on Bagged 

107. Roanoke Hill # 1   good  36.97564  -82.29523  Roanoke Hill                                                                                                                             

108. Roanoke Hill # 2   good   36.97459  -82.29518 

109. Roanoke Hill # 3 good     36.97577  -82.29618 

110. Route 63 # 1   repair weep 36.91442 -82.30138  Route 63 Mueller 1972 can be used valve is off Bagged  

111. Route 63 # 2   good 36.91555  -82.29930 

112. Route 63 # 3   good 36.92489  -82.28600 

113. Route 63 # 4 good 36.94156 -82.28625 

114. Shotgun Hollow # 1 good 36.96791  -82.17155  Shotgun Hollow  

 

Needs Repaired 
Needs Replaced 
Needs Repaired (Valves are off and hydrant is bagged off, but can be used) 
Has Been Fixed 

 









?>

Courtesy of VGIN , Commonwealth of VirginiaCourtesy of VGIN , Commonwealth of VirginiaCourtesy of VGIN , Commonwealth of Virginia www.interactiveGIS.com Printed 11/07/2021

Curtis Saylers Property

00000 100 ft100 ft100 ft100 ft100 ft 200 ft200 ft200 ft200 ft200 ft

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight

Tracy
Highlight



RUSSELL COUNTY VA10/30/2020Print Date:

125,500

0.200

1.10

120,890

24,178

C+5)Grade Factor    (

)Phys Depr. %   (

Assessed Value:

Replacement Value:

Dwelling Value:

Total Prop.

Total Imp.

Total Land 24,800

125,500

Land Use Value

100,700

96,700

96,700

Commercial 0

0 1440DWELLING 58,060.0040.32

0 324DWELLING 15,645.0048.29

1 0BATH HALF 1,600.000.00

1 0FIREPLACE 4,500.000.00

0 1764CENTRAL A/C 2,646.001.50

0 150PORCH OPEN 2,250.0015.00

0 96PORCH OPEN 1,440.0015.00

0 420GARAGE FRAME 8,400.0020.00

0 192WOOD DECK 1,920.0010.00

1 0BATH FULL 2,400.000.00

1 0SEPTIC 4,000.000.00

0 1764CENTRAL HEAT 3,087.001.75

1 0WELL 4,000.000.00

Owner:Map#:

Acreage:

Record:

Sale Price:

Stories:

Remarks:

Deed Book

-

Instrument #

Dwelling Valuation

Year Built:

-

911 Adr:

Ratio:

Air Condition:

No. Rooms:

No. Bedrooms:

No. Baths: F / H

Zoning:

Exterior

Construction:

Street:

Street:

Utilities:

Utilities:

Use Class:

Interior:

Floors:

Foundation:

Exterior Walls:

Roofing:

User Codes:

Date Inspected

At Home

Initials

Previous Values

Bldg

Land

Total

Land Description Unit Size RateCls  Adj Value

Improvement Length Width Condition Deprc. Total Value

Description Story Size Class Factor Rate Value

7812

SALYERS CURTIS JUNIOR

1

141R SA  1359

1980

0   360 CARBO RD

2.00

7

3

1 1

JH

41600 0.66

5.400

20180508

HOMESITE 2000A 200001 0.00E 10000.000.00
RESIDUAL 3400A 476050 0.00A 0.000.00

Mthd Grd Dept

POOL IN GROUND 4000

DWL DWELLING 2.00 1440
GRF GARAGE FRAME 1.00 420
WDK WOOD DECK 1.00 192
DWL DWELLING 1.00 324
POR PORCH OPEN 1.00 150
POR PORCH OPEN 1.00 96

                    +---16----+
                    :         :
                   12        12
                    :WDK      :
+----20-----+--14---+---16----+-8-+--12---+
:          GRF                :DWL8POR   8:
:           :                 :   :       :
:           :                 :   +--12---+
21         21                21           :
:           :                 :         13:
:           :                 :           :
:           :                 :           :
+----20-----+DWL              +----20-----+
            +-------30--------+
            5-------30----POR-5

Item Rate ValueQty Size

148 CARRIAGE RD

RAVEN VA                       24639

Occupancy:

Interior

Floors:

Site

ALUMINUM

CINDER

ASPHALT

GABLE

CARPET

HARDWOOD

SEPTIC

WELL

24800

99800

 729 416














































































	Public Hearing.pdf
	Meeting: 12/6/21     4:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Authorization - Minutes BOS.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Authorization - Expenditures.pdf
	SUGGESTED MOTION(s):

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 12/6/21         4:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Presentations - Attorney.pdf
	Meeting: 12/6/21         4:00 PM
	Staff Recommendation:
	Suggested Motion:

	Russell County Summary of Bid Results v.4 (004).pdf
	VRA VAHELPS – Russell County
	Request For Proposal Process
	Summary of Proposals Received
	Detailed Summary of Top 3 Proposals
	Estimated Debt Service
	Estimated Debt Service
	Estimated Debt Service
	Municipal Advisor Disclosure

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 12/6/21             4:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 12/6/21             4:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 12/6/21             4:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):

	Reports1.pdf
	Meeting: 12/6/21             4:00 PM
	STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):

	Virginia Subdivision Escrow Agreement.Russell County, VA.pdf
	Virginia Subdivision Escrow Agreement
	Purpose of this Agreement
	Escrow




